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Independent Auditors' Report 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements ofthe Louis Armstrong New Orleans hitemational 
Airport (the Ahport), a proprietary component unit of the City of New Orleans, as of and for the years 
ended December31, 2012 and 2011, and the related notes to tiie financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Airport's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Managemem's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accoi^ce with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, m^lementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of fmancial statements that are free firom material misstatement, whetiier due to firaud or error. 

Auditors' ResponsibiUfy 

Our tesponsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance witii auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards appUcable to financial audits contained m Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requne that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain leasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free firom material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to firaud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
curcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and q)propriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position ofthe Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Airport as of December 31,2012 and 
2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash fiows for the years then ended, in 
confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operation, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing die information and comparing the information for consistency witii management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit ofthe basic firiancial statements. However, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with suf&cient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. Supplemental schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a reqmred part of the basic financial statements. The supplemental 
schedules aro the responsibility of management and were derived fiom and relate directiy to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The Supplemental schedules 1 and 2 
have been subjected to the auditing procedures ^plied in the audits ofthe basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance -^th auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, supplemental Schedules 1 and 2 are fairly stated 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a "^ole. 

Schedule 3 has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it 

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28, 2013, 
on our consideration of the Airport's intemal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the Airport's intemal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
June 28,2013 

P&N 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

This narrative discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Louis Armstrong New 
Orleans International Airport's basic financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012 and 
2011, with selected comparative information for the fiscal year ended December31, 2010, The information 
presented here should be read in conjunction with the financial statements, footnotes, and supplementary 
information in this report. 

Overview ofthe Financial Statements 

The Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Airport (the Airport) is structured as an enterprise fimd. The 
financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Therefore, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Capital assets are capitalized and depreciated, except for 
land, over their usefiil lives. See the notes to the financial statements for a summary of the Airport's significant 
accounting policies. 

Following this Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the basic financial statements and 
supplemental schedules ofthe Airport. This information taken collectively is designed to provide readers with an 
understanding ofthe Airport's finances. 

The statements of net position present information on all ofthe Airport's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator ofthe Airport's financial position. 

The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position present information showing how the 
Airport's net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless ofthe timing of related cash fiows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will result in cash fiows in fiiture fiscal periods. 

The principal operating revenues of the Airport are from sources such as airlines, concessions, rental cars, and 
parking. Investment income, passenger facility charges, customer facility charges, federal grants, and other 
revenues not related to the operations ofthe Auport are nonoperatmg revenues. Operating expenses include the 
cost of airport and related facilities maintenance, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
Interest expense and financing costs are nonoperating expenses. 

The statements of cash flows relate to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequentiy, only transactions 
that affect the Airport's cash accounts are recorded in these statements. A reconciliation is a part of these 
statements to assist in the understanding of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and 
operating loss. 

Financial Highlights 

The Board received approval for participation in tiie Gulf Tax Credit Bonds Program (Go Zone Tax Credit 
Bonds) sponsored by the State of Louisiana in an amount not exceeding $36,000,000. The Airport was approved 
for $35,371,990 for an interest ft«e period of 60 montiis. By July 2008. the Auport had drawn the fiill amount 
authorized, using the fimds to pay debt service on the Bonds and related mterest rate swap payments. The 
airports initial interest payment was due January 15, 2012 and its first principal and second interest payment was 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

due July 15, 2012. The Airport withheld these payments during 2012 pendmg an ongoing petition for loan 
forgiveness. Subsequently, the Airport remitted the two interest payments m 2013 in the amount of $820,630 
each. 

The Airport negotiated a new Commercial Airline Lease effective January 1, 2009 with the Airline 
Transportation Companies. The new Airline - Airport Use and Lease Agreement (the "2009 Airline Lease 
Agreement") has an overall residual airline rate-setting methodology and a five-year term, which expires on 
December 31, 2013. Other key provisions to the Agreement include, a single terminal building rental rate, an 
aimual deposit requirement to the General Purposes Fund, and airline approved capital projects that the NOAB 
may undertake at any time as demand warrants. To date, ten airlines, representing the vast majority of aviation 
activity at the Airport, have executed the Agreement. 

Financial Position 

Total assets decreased by $3,850,506 (,5%) this year due primarily to a decrease in investments as a result of 
costs associated with preparing the terminal for Super Bowl. Total liabilities decreased by $14,600,455 (3.5%) 
primarily resulting from a decrease in bonds payable and accounts payable in the amounts of $8,377,990 and 
$6,418,109 respectively. 

The largest portion of tiie Alport's net position, $250,664,347 (66%) at 2012 and $228,829,564 (62%) at 2011, 
represents its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The Airport uses 
these assets to provide services to its passengers, visitors, and tenants of the airport; consequently, these assets 
are not available for fiiture spending. Although the Airport's investment in its capital assets is reported net of 
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from operations, 
smce the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of tiie Airport's net position, $93,305,698 (25%) at 2012 and $90,813,267 (25%) at 2011, 
represents resoiux:es that are subject to restrictions from contributors, bond indentures, and state and federal 
regulations on how they may be used. The remaining balance of uruestricted net position, $35,508,554 (9%) at 
2012 and $49,085,819 (13%) at 2011, may be used to meet the Airport's ongomg obligations. 

At the end ofthe current and previous fiscal year, the Airport reported positive balances in all three categories of 
net position. 

Summary of Net Position (in thousands) 

2012 2011 2010 

Assets: 
Current and other assets 
Net capital assets 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

241,431 
537,072 

778,503 

$ 

$ 

294,252 $ 
488,101 

782,353 $ 

339,978 
429,897 

769,875 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Liabilities: 

Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
UmesUicted 

Total net position 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

$ _ 

55,808 
343,216 

399,024 

250,664 
93,306 
35,509 

379,479 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

$ 

59,768 
353,856 

413,624 

228,830 
90,813 
49,086 

368.729 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

$ _ 

50,013 
363,919 

413.932 

212,835 
98,493 
44,615 

355,943 

Debt Activity 

At the end ofthe current fiscal year, the Airport had total debt outstanding of $358,057,814. The Airport's debt 
represents bonds secured solely by operating revenue and bonds payable fix)m PFC and CFC revenue. 

The Auport is currentiy appealing the repayment schedule for the Go Zone loan; as ofthe date of this audit, the 
required interest payments of $820,630 due January 15,2012 and July 15,2012 have each been made. 

Outstanding Debt (in thousands) 

Bonds payable: 
Revenue Refimdmg Bonds 2007 (PFC) 
Revenue Refunding Bonds 2009A-C 
Go Zone CFC Revenue Bonds 2009A 
GO Zone PFC Revenue Bonds 2010A-B 

Unamortized bond discount 
Unamortized loss on advanced refiinding 
Unamortized bond premium 

Loans payable: 
Go Zone Tax Credit Bonds 

Interest payable: 
GO Zone 

2012 

35,372 

2,423 

360,481 $ 

2011 

35,372 

820 

367,256 $ 

2010 

78,490 $ 
120,225 
96,515 
53,640 
(3,321) 

(23,528) 
665 

81,255 $ 
128,355 
96,515 
53,640 
(3,483) 

(25,909) 
691 

83,890 
136,170 
96,515 
53,640 
(3.646) 

(28,290) 
718 

35,372 

374,369 

More detailed information on long-term debt can be found in Note 5 ofthe accompanying fmancial statements. 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Capital Assets 

The Airport's investment in capital assets can be noted in the following table. The total increase for this fiscal 
year was 8% before accumulated depreciation and amortization. Major capital asset events occurring this fiscal 
year include the following: 

• Land improvements/other buildings increased primarily due to the completion of Terminal Exterior 
Phase n Roadways at a cost of $9 million. North Perimeter Road at a cost of $4 million, and Apron 
Rehabilitation - Phases 1/n at a cost of $27.5 million. 

• Terminal buildmgs and fiimishings increased primarily due to the completion of Terminal Interior 
Phase I at a cost of $8.8 million and Terminal Interior Phase HI at a cost of $ 12.5 million. 

• Construction in progress increased primarily due to progress on the following projects: 

Approxunate cost 
Project during FY 2012 (not 

including capitalized 
interest) 

Consolidated Rent A Car Facility 

Terminal Improvements Phase IV 

Utility Building 

$34 million 

$11 million 

$6 million 

These increases were offset by the completion of various projects. More detailed information on capital assets 
can be found in Note 4 ofthe accompanying financial statements. 

Net Capital Assets (in thousands) 

Land 
Air rights 
Land improvements 
Buildings and fiunishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets 

2012 2011 2010 
85,309 $ 
22,283 

386,947 
399,470 

7,290 
723 

14,255 
3,074 

133,475 

1,052,826 

515,754 

537.072 $ 

85,309 $ 
22,283 

341,920 
373.918 

6,496 
713 

7,786 
3,074 

129,621 

971,120 

483,019 

488,101 S 

85,432 
22,170 

338,034 
331,640 

6,590 
621 

7,786 
3,070 

86,273 

881,616 

451,719 

429,897 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Airlines Rates and Charges 

As previously discussed, a new Ahlme Airport Use and Lease Agreement became effective January 1, 2009. The 
rates effective January 1,2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

2012 2011 
Terminal building rental rates (per sq. fr.) 
Landmg fee rate (per 1,000 lbs) 
Apron use fee rate (per sq. ft.) 
Loading bridge use fee (per bridge) 
Enplaned passenger use fee (per passenger) 

Under the terms ofthe agreement, these rates are subject to a mid-year adjustment and year-end settlement. The 
Auport is required to use its best efforts such that witiiin the later of (i) one hundred twenty (120) days following 
the close of each fiscal year or (ii) within sixty (60) days of receipt of audited fmancial statements, rates for 
rentals, fees, and charges for the preceding fiscal year shall be recalculated using available fmancial data and the 
methods set forth in Exhibit F ofthe agreement. For the fiscal years ended December 31. 2012 and 2011, the 
Airport's fmal rate structure varied fi*om the rates ui effect during the year. 

Revenues 

The following chart shows major sources and the percentage of operating revenues for the year ended 
December 31,2012. 

Operating Revenue 

Rental Car ConoBssteu 
12J% 

$ 99.02 
1,85 
1.81 

14,481 
7.56 

$ 101.68 
1.95 
1.90 

12.973 
8.50 

AMha Termtntl Rent 
41.7H 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Operating Revenues (in thousands) 

2012 2011 2010 

Passenger and cargo airlines: 
Airline Landmg fees 
Airline Terminal rents 
Land rents 
Other rents 

Total passenger and 
cargo airlines 

Non airline rentals: 
Terminal concessions 
Car rental concessions 
Public parkmg 
Otiier rents 

Total ncmairline revenues 

Total operating revenues 

$ 

^ — • K K 

$ 

12,554 S 
31,165 

50 
2,731 

46,500 

5,182 
9,171 
9,314 
4,489 

28,156 

74,656 $ 

7,883 $ 
22,197 

50 
2,427 

32,557 

4,915 
8,584 

10,720 
4,531 

28,750 

61,307 $ 

9,896 
27,613 

50 
2,509 

40,068 

4,697 
9357 
8364 
4,592 

27.010 

67,078 

2012 vs. 2011 

The 2009 Ahline Lease Agreement remains in effect for 2012. Total air carrier revenue for 2012 mcreased by 
$13,942,950 (43%) over 2011 due to an adjustment to tiie 2011 airline settlement in tiie amount of $7,342,837. 
Non airline revenue increased by $594,085 (2%), due primarily to a decrease in parking revenues. 

2011 vs. 2010 

Total air carrier revenue for 2011 decreased by $7,511,424 (19%) over 2010 due to reduced revenues resulting 
from a decrease in rates. The landing fees decreased by $2,013,720 (20%). Airiine terminal rentals decreased by 
$5,416,337 (20%). Non airline revenue increased by $1,740,508 (6%), due primarily to an increase in parking 
revenues. 

Cost per enplaned passenger (CPE) is a measure used by the airline industry to reflect the costs an airline pays to 
operate at an airport based upon the number of enplaned passengers for that airport. The cost per enplaned 
passenger decreased from $9.50 in 2010 to $9.07 in 2011 and decreased to $8.70 in 2012. 

(Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 
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(Unaudited) 

2012 

Cost per enplaned passenger: 
Airline revalues 
Enplaned passengers 
Cost per enplaned passenger 

37,471 
4,307 

s 

$ 

2011 

38,829 
4,281 

9.0V 

$ 

$ _ 

2010 

38,987 
4,102 
9.50 

129 $ 
17,271 
11,438 
2,750 
1,295 

; 32,883 $ 

99 $ 
17,389 
11,456 
12,291 
2,053 

43,288 $ 

139 
16,912 
11,975 
10,736 
13,032 

52,794 

Non-Operating Revenues (in thousands) 

The following chart shows major sources of non-operating revenues for the year ended December 31,2012. 

2012 2011 2010 

Interest income 
Passenger facility charges 
Customer fadlitychaiges 
Capital contributions 
Otiier 

2012 vs. 2011 

Non-operating revenues for 2012 decreased by $10,405,562, due primarily to a reduction in grant revenue 
received from the federal govemment. 

2011 vs. 2010 

Non-operating revenues decreased by $9,506,505, due primarily to the gain on extinguishment of debt that was 
recognized m 2010 due to the FEMA Community Disaster Loan in the amount of $10,882,641, plus interest in 
the amount of $1,122,297 being forgiven by the federal government. 

Expenses 

The following chart shows major expense categories and the percentage of operating expenses for the year ended 
December 31.2012. 

(Continued) 
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(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Operating Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 

Canc/Unreimb ProJ 
1 % 

Administration 
52% 

Tenninai 
34% 

Ground Transportation 
7% 

Operating Expenses before Depreciation (in thousands) 

Direct 
Airfield 
Terminal 
Groind transportation 

Administration 
Cancelled/unreimbursed projects 

2012 2011 2010 

2,555 $ 
16,028 
3,291 

24,572 
704 

47,150 $ 

2,241 $ 
12,186 
4,303 

22,767 
1,681 

43,178 $ 

2,264 
12,957 
5,047 

24,305 
5,562 

50,135 

2012 vs. 2011 

The operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by $3,971,089 (9%) over the prior year, 
due primarily to increased costs for the City of New Orleans Fire services in the amount of $1,671,838 (59%) 
and the costs for preparing tiie termmal for Super Bowl of $3,728,496 (100%). 

2011 vs. 2010 

The operating expenses before depreciation and amortization decreased by $6,957,105 (14%) over the prior year, 
due primarily to a reduction in cancelled/unreimbursed projects in tiie amount of $3,881,025 (70%). This 
decrease was also due to a reduction m legal costs in the amount of $405,466 (34%), security costs of $819,535 
(34%), and utilities of $731,067 (20%). 

10 (Continued) 
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(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Non-Operating Expenses 

The following chart shows major expense categories of non-operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 
2012. 

Interest expense 
Otiier 

2012 vs. 2011 

Non-operating expenses mcreased by $719,250 over the prior, due primarily to an increase m interest expense. 

2011 vs. 2010 

Non-operating expenses increased by $1,678,960 over the prior year, due primarily to an increase m interest 
expense and a loss on disposal of assets. 

Total Revenues and Expenses (in thousands) 

The following table reflects the total revenues and expenses for the Auport (in thousands): 

2012 2011 2010 

$ 

2012 

16,171 
733 

16,904 

$ 

$ _ 

2011 

14,288 $ 
1,897 

16.185 $ 

2010 

13,415 
1,091 

14,506 

Total operating revenues $ 74,656 $ 61^07 $ 67,078 
Total nonoperating revenues 32,883 43,288 52,795 

Total revenues $ 107,539 $ 104,595 $ 119,873 

Total operating expenses $ 79,885 $ 75.625 $ 79,734 
Total nonoperating expenses 16,904 16,185 14,506 

Total expenses $ 96,789 $ 91,810 $ 94,240 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Summary of Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

2012 2011 2010 

Summary of changes m net position: 
Operating revenues $ 
Operating expenses 

Operating mcome before 
depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues, net 

Income before capital 
contributions and transfers 

Capital contributions 

Change in net position 3 

74,656 $ 
47.150 

27,506 

32,735 

(5.229) 

13.229 

8,000 

2,750 

i 10,750 $ 
— • • ' c 

61.307 $ 
43,178 

18,129 

32,447 

(14,318) 

14,812 

494 

12,291 

12,785 $ 

67,078 
50,135 

16,943 

29,599 

(12,656) 

27,553 

14,897 

10,736 

25,633 

Operating income before depreciation and amortization increased $9,377,776 (52%) over the prior fiscal year, 
due primarily to an adjustment ofthe 2011 airline settiement in the amount of $7,342,837. Depreciation and 
amortization expense increased $288,419 (1%). Capital contributions decreased by $9,541,056 (78%) due 
primarily to a decrease in the capital contributions received from the federal govemment. 

Debt Service Coverage 

Airport revenue bond covenants require that net revenues together with the sum on deposit in the rollover 
coverage account on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year will at least equal 125% of the bond 
debt service requirement with respect to the bonds for such fiscal year. The bond resolution for the Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Series 2007A, 2007B-1, and 2007B-2, PFC Projects had a remaining ratio requirement of 
105% or greater obtained by dividing the available amount by the cumulative debt amount. Coverage ratios for 
the past three years are shown m the following table. 

On November 6,2009, the Board approved the Rollover Coverage for fiscal years 2010-2012 in the amounts of 
$3,719,573, $3,720,173, and $3,719,960 respectively. The funds are transfen-ed montiily, in ratable portions of 
the total, to the NOAB Rollover Coverage Account held by the City of New Orleans, and then transferred to the 
Airport Operating Account, held by the City of New Orleans in January 2013. The Airport's calculation of tiie 
historical debt service coverage ratio, as presented in Supplemental Schedule 3 to the financial statements is 
214% for tiie year ended December 31, 2012 and 156% for tiie year ended December 31,2011. 
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December 31, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

The Airport is cunent on all debt service payments as required by the bonds, and there has been no documented 
correspondence from the bond insurers or bond holders regarding noncompliance with the debt service coverage 
covenant. 

2012 2011 2010 

Refimding Bonds and Revenue Bonds 
Revenue Refimding Bonds 

214% 
182% 

156% 
175% 

150% 
198% 

Airport Activities and Highlights 

Passenger totals for 2012 increased by 52.614 (.6%) over 2011 due to an increase in passenger activity. Aircraft 
operations decreased fix)m 92,746 operations in 2011 to 90,672 in 2012 (2%). Aircraft landed weights decreased 
fi-om 5,613,633 in 2011 to 5,479.289 in 2012 (2%). As of December 2012, tiie Airport had 121 daily departures 
to 37 cities with 15,041 average daily seats. As of December 2011, tiie Airport had 123 daily departures to 37 
cities with 15.463 average daily seats. 

The Airport is continuing a program to rehabilitate aging infi-astructure to meet current demands. Work was near 
substantial completion on the Consolidated Rent A Car Facility, the Terminal Apron Rehabilitation, and 
Terminal Improvements projects at December 31,2012. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Total Passengers by Month 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Landed Weight per 1,000 pounds 

7.500.000 

7.000,000 

6.500,000 

6.000.000 

5,500.000 

5.000,000 

4,500,000 

4,000.000 

2010 2011 2012 

Number of Passenger Flight Operations 

140.000 

130.000 

120.000 

110.000 

100.000 

90.000 

80,000 

70.000 

60,000 

50,000 
m 

2010 2011 2012 

15 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2012 and 2011 

(Unaudited) 

Selected statistical information about total passengers, aircraft landed weight, and air carrier operations for the 
past three years are presented in the table below. 

Fiscal year 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Total 
passengers 

8,203.305 
8,548,375 
8,600,989 

Landed weight 
(1,000 pound 

units) 
5,501,940 
5,613,633 
5,479,289 

Air carrier 
operations 

89,003 
92,746 
90.672 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Airport's finances. Questions conceming 
any of the information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Louis Armstrong New Orleans 
International Airport, Post Oftice Box 20007, New Orleans, Louisiana 70141. 

16 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Net Position 

December 3 L 2012 and 2011 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Unrestricted assets: 

Cash (note 2) 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 

of $966,249 in 2012; $2,050,887 in 2011 
Investments (note 2) 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 

Total unrestricted assets 

Restricted assets (notes 2,3, and 5): 
Cash 
Investments 
Passenger &cihty charges receivable 
Customer facility charges receivable 
Capital grant receivable 

Total restricted assets 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Long-term investments (note 2): 

Investments, restricted 

Total long-term investments 

Capita] assets (note 4): 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Prepaid insurance on revenue bonds, less accumulated 
amortization of $1,097,966 in 2012; $835,686 in 2011 

Deferred cost of bond issuance, less accumulated amortization 
of $1,121,312 in 2012; $816,032 in 2011 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

2012 2011 

2.640,786 $ 2,081,790 

6,086,148 
80,165.600 

1,114.717 

90,007,251 

622,466 
34.000,154 

1,696.036 
818.338 

1.966,988 

39.103.982 

129,111,233 

103.027,805 

103,027.805 

241,066,871 
811,759,585 

(515,754.290) 

537,072.166 

3,733,535 

5.558,124 

649,391.630 

$ 778,502.863 $ 

5,766.876 
93,304.940 

1,294,732 

102,448,338 

117,681 
37.731.829 
2,048,883 

802.565 
1,897,197 

42.598,155 

145,046,493 

139,346.261 

139,346,261 

237,213,216 
733.907,471 

(483,019,291) 

488,101,396 

3.995,815 

5,863.404 

637.306.876 

782,353.369 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Net Position 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Cunent liabilities: 
Payable from unrestricted assets: 

Accounts payable 
Due to City of New Orieans 
Accmed salaries and other compensation 
Capital projects payable 

Total unrestricted current liabilities 

Payable from restricted assets: 
Accounts payable 
Capital projects payable 
Bonds payable, current portion (note 5) 
Accrued bond interest payable 
Loans payable, current portion (note 5) 
Loan mterest payable 

Total restricted current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds payable, less current portion, unamortized loss on 

advance refunding and unamortized discount (note 5) 
Loans payable (note 5) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilhies 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital acquisition 
Operatmg reserve 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

2012 2011 

8.236,633 $ 14,864,170 
1,209,290 
1,418.765 
5,839.201 

16,703,889 

3,690,233 
8,543,252 

11,395,000 
9,606.258 
3,446,421 
2,422.818 

39,103.982 

55,807,871 

31U90.824 
31,925,569 

343,216.393 

399,024,264 

250,664.347 

45.468,970 
35,741,183 
12,095.545 
35,508,554 

379,478.599 

778,502,863 $ 

753,255 
1,351,821 

200,652 

17,169,898 

3,480,805 
15,859,274 
10,895,000 
9,858308 
1.684,138 

820,630 

42,598,155 

59,768,053 

320,168,814 
33,687,852 

353,856,666 

413,624,719 

228.829.564 

45,256,853 
33.461,301 
12,095.113 
49,085,819 

368,728,650 

782,353.369 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 

2012 2011 

Operating revenues (note 8): 
Airfield 
Terminal 
Ground transportation 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Direct: 

Airfield 
Terminal 
Ground Transportation 

Depreciation and impairment write-down 
Administrative 
Cancelled/unreimbursed projects 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenues (e?q>enses): 
Investment income Ooss) 
Interest expense 
Passenger facility charges 
Customer facility charges 
Other, net 

Total nonoperating revenues, net 

Income before capital contributions 

Capital contributions (note 6) 

Change in net position 

Total net position begiiming of year 

Total net position, end of year 

$ 15.608,960 $ 
56.887,020 
2,160,224 

74,656,204 

2.554.591 
16,028.530 
3.290,932 

32,734.999 
24.571.891 

703,779 

79,884.722 

(5,228.518) 

209.434 
(16,171.339) 
17,271.733 
11,437.828 

480.855 

13.228.511 

7,999.993 

2,749.956 

10,749,949 

368,728.650 

$ 379,478.599 $ 

10.580,838 
48,575.326 
2,151,175 

61307.339 

2,240,792 
12,185,848 
4303,234 

32,446,580 
22,767,418 

1,681342 

75,625,214 

(14317.875) 

(136.341) 
(14,287.593) 
17389,251 
11.456,403 

390,548 

14.812.268 

494393 

12.291.012 

12,785,405 

355,943,245 

368,728,650 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 

2012 2011 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash pmd to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees and on behalf of employees 

for services 
Other receipts 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities: 
Sales tax receipts 
FEMA proceeds 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Passenger fecility charges collected 
Customer ^ihty charges collected 
Proceeds fiom disposition of property 
Acquisition and constiuction of capital assets 
Capital grants received 
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities 
Interest paid on bonds and loans 

Net cash used m capital and related 
financing activities 

Cash fiows from investing activities: 
Sales of investments 
Purchases of investments 
Interest and dividends on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash eqiuvalents at begmning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 2) 

Noncash investing activities: 
Increase (decrease) in stock investments due to change in fair value 

74336,932 $ 
(41364.289) 

(11.500,854) 
484,266 

21,956.055 

698,181 

698.181 

17,624.580 
11,422.055 

2.479 
(76.224.950) 

2,680.165 
(10,895,000) 
(19,627,972) 

(75,018,643) 

198,556,108 
(145,286,127) 

158.207 

53,428.188 

1,063.781 
2.199,471 
3.263,252 $ 

80,510 $ 

59,531,824 
(30,591,437) 

(9,958,955) 
658356 

19,639,788 

750.726 
568,202 

1318,928 

16,995.980 
11.510.350 

36.245 
(74.887.490) 
11.284,948 

(10,450,000) 
(20,415.172) 

(65.925.139) 

185.980.802 
(142.406,122) 

137,856 

43,712,536 

(1,253.887) 
3,453358 
2,199.471 

(235,562) 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31.2012 and 2011 

2012 2011 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operatmg loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and impairment write-down 
Decrease (increase) in allowance for doubtful accounts 
Otiier 
Changes m assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and other compensation 
Due to City of New Orleans 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

(5,228.518) $ 

32,734.999 
(1,084,638) 

484,265 

765367 
179,711 

(6,418,110) 
20,938 

502,041 

27.184,573 

21,956.055 $ 

(14317,875) 

32,446,580 
898,344 
658356 

(53,034) 
594,489 

(338,014) 
196.194 

(445.252) 

33,957,663 

19,639,788 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31.2012 and 2011 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Orgtmization 

The Louis Armstrong New Orleans International Auport (the Airport) is a proprietaiy component 
unit of the City of New Orleans, Louisiana. The New Orleans Aviation Board (the Board) was 
established in 1943 to provide for the operation and maintenance ofthe Airport. The Board consists 
of nine members appointed by the Mayor of the City of New Orleans with approval of the New 
Orleans City Council. The City of Kenner, Louisiana and the Parish of St. Charles, Louisiana each 
have input as to the selection of one board member. 

The accompanying policies ofthe Auport conform to accounting principles generally accepted m the 
United States of America as applicable to proprietary component imits of govemmental entities. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

Proprietary fund accounting is used for the Airport's ongoing operations and activities i ^ c h are 
similar to those often found in the private sector. Proprietary fiinds are accounted for using the 
economic resources measurement focus. The Airport is a proprietary component unit and accounts 
for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises 
where the intent of the goveming body is that the cost (expenses, mcluding depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges and (b) where the goveming body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

The principal operating revenues ofthe Airport arc from sources such as airlines, concessions, rental 
cars, and parking. Investment income, passenger facility charges, customer facility charges, federal 
and state grants, and other revenues not related to the operations of the Airport are nonoperating 
revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of airport and related facilities maintenance, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Interest expense and financing costs are 
nonoperating expenses. 

(c) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under 
which revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred. Revenues 
from landing and airfield fees, terminal building, rental building, and leased areas are reported as 
operating revenues. Transactions, which are capital, fmancing. or investing related, are reported as 
nonoperating revenues. Expenses from employee wages and benefits, purchase of services, materials 
and supplies, and other miscellaneous expenses are reported as operating expenses. Interest expense 
and financing costs are reported as nonoperating expenses. The Airport has implemented 
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accoimting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements, which codifies most pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA pronouncements 
that are relevant to govemments and do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit of tiie City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

This eluninates the option for business-type activities to follow new FASB pronouncements, 
although they may continue to be applied as "other accountmg literature." 

(d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the Uiuted States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date ofthe fmancial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates. 

(e) Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable 

An allowance for estunated uncollectible accounts receivable is established at the time infomiation 
becomes available, which would indicate the uncollectibility ofthe particular receivable. 

(f) Investments 

Investments are carried at fair value in the financial statements. Unrealized gains and losses on 
investments are reflected in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

(g) CapitalAssets 

Capital assets are carried at cost. An item is classified as an asset if the initial, individual cost is 
$1,000 or greater. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed 
as incurred. In situations involving the construction of certain assets financed with the proceeds of 
tax-exempt borrowings, interest eamed on related interest-bearing investments fix)m such proceeds 
are offset against the related interest costs in determining the amount of interest to be capitalized. 
There was capitalized interest m the amount of $7,158,293 in 2012 and $8,764,254 in 2011. 

The Airport adopted the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 51 -
Accountmg and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets (GASB 51). GASB 51 provides that if 
there are no factors that limit the useful life of an intangible asset, the mtangible asset is considered 
to have an indefinite usefiil life. Intangible assets with indefmite life is subsequently determined that 
certain ah rights previously recorded as amortizable capital assets, now qualify as intangible assets 
asdefmedmGASB51. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method 
commencing with the date of acquisition or. in the case of assets constmcted. the date placed into 
service. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

The estimated useful lives by major classification are as follows: 

T^nd improvements 
Buildings and fumishmgs 
Equipment 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Estimated 
useful 

lives (years) 

10-25 
3-25 
3-15 
5-25 
5-15 

(h) Due from/Due to the City of New Orleans 

Amounts recorded as due from and due to the City of New Orleans primarily relate to amounts paid 
by the City on behalf of the Airport. In addition, the City provides certain administrative services to 
die Airport. The cost of such services was $1,753,520 for each of the years ended December 31, 
2012 and 2011, respectively, and is recorded in administrative expenses in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

(i) Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include investments required to be maintained for debt service, capital additions 
and contingencies, operations and maintenance, and escrow under the indentures ofthe revenue and 
refunding bonds, as well as investments to be used for the construction of capital improvements. 
Restricted assets also include receivables related to passenger and customer facility charges and 
grants. 

(j) Bond Insurance 

In conjunction with bonds issued in 2009 and 2007, insurance was purchased which guarantees the 
payment of bond principal and interest and expires with the final principal and interest payment on 
the bonds. The insurance costs were capitalized at the dates of issuance and are being amortized over 
the life ofthe bonds. 

(k) Revenue Recognition 

Landing and airfield fees, terminal building, rental building, and leased areas rentals are recorded as 
revenues ofthe year in which eamed. 

As a result of Hurricane Katrina, the Auport entered into negotiations with the airline transportation 
companies in order to determine the maxunum amount of fees and charges the Auport would be able 
to charge to retain the airline transportation companies and provide airline services to the City of 
New Orleans. In November 2005, the Board adopted tiie rates, fees, and charges resolution whereby 
the airport transportation companies are charged $8.00 per enplaned passenger. Landing fees were 
established at $1.07 per 1.000 pounds of gross maximum landed weight. 
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$ 99.02 
1.85 
1.81 

14,481 
7.56 

$ 101.68 
1.95 
1.90 

12,973 
8.50 

LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31.2012 and 2011 

On January 1, 2009 all prospective signatory ahlines began paying signatory afrline rates and 
charges accordmg to the new lease agreement. The rates for 2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

2012 2011 

Terminal building rental rates (per sq. ft.) 
Landing fee rate (per 1,000 lbs) 
Apron use fee rate (per sq. ft.) 
Loading bridge use fee (per bridge) 
Enplaned passenger use fee (per passenger) 

Under the terms of the agreement, these rates are subject to a mid-year adjustment and year-end 
settlement. The Airport is requu*ed to use its best efforts such that within the later of (i) one hundred 
twenty (120) days following the close of each fiscal year or (ii) within sixty (60) days of receipt of 
audited financial statements, rates for rentals, fees, and charges for the preceding fiscal year shall be 
recalculated usmg available financial data and the methods. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 
2012 and 2011, the Airport's fmal rate structure varied from the rates in effect during the year. 

(I) Passenger Facility Charges 

On June 1, 1993, the Airport began unposing, upon approval ofthe Federal Aviation Administration 
(the FAA), a $3.00 Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) on each passenger enplaned at the Airport. On 
April 1,2002, the FAA approved an increase in the amount of this fee to $4.50. As of December3l, 
2012, tiie Airport is autiiorized to collect up to $564,820,750 of PFC revenue of which $296,144,764 
has been collected. PFC revenues are pledged to secure the Series 2007 Revenue bonds and the 
Series 2009 Revenue bonds, which funded constmction of preapproved capital projects and 
redeemed prior Series of PFC Bonds. As of December 31, 2012, the estimated expiration date on 
PFC revenue collection is February 1,2026. 

(m) Customer Facility Charges 

On November 1,2008, the Airport began imposing a $5.50 Customer Facility Charge (CFC) on a per 
transaction day basis to all the On-Airport Rental Car Companies. On May 13, 2009, the Board 
approved an increase in the CFC charge to $6.20 which became effective June 1, 2009. CFC 
revenues are pledged to secure the Series 2009 Gulf Oppormnity Zone CFC Revenue Bonds, which 
were issued to fimd the construction ofthe CONRAC garage. 

(n) Federal Financial Assistance 

The Airport receives financial assistance for costs of construction and improvements to airport 
facilities tiirough grants from the FAA. The Airport is on the reimbursement basis for funds received 
for fmancial assistance. As of December 31,2012, tiie Airport had received $3,159,642 from FEMA 
as reimbursement for repairs and expenses mcurred by the Airport as a result of Hurricanes Katrina 
and Gustav. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietaiy Component Unit of tiie City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(o) Vacation and Sick Leave 

All full-time classified employees of the Airport hired prior to January 1, 1979 are permitted to 
accrue a maximum of 90 days of vacation (annual leave) and an unlimited nmnber of days of sick 
leave (accumulated at a maximum of 24 days per year). Employees hired after December 31, 1978 
can accrue a maximum of 45 days annual leave and an unlunited number of days of sick leave 
(accumulated at a maxunum of 24 days per year). Upon termination of employment, an employee is 
paid for their accmed annual leave based on their current hourly rate of pay and for their accmed 
sick leave on a formula basis. If termination is the result of retirement, the employee has the option 
of converting their accmed annual and sick leave to additional pension credits. Annual leave and sick 
leave liabiUties are accrued when mcurred. 

Qf) Statements of Cash Flows 

For purposes ofthe statements of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash and 
restricted cash. 

(q) Net Position 

The Airport has implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, effective fiscal year 2012. This j 
standard provides guidance for reporting the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of i 
resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows represent the consumption of the 
govemmenf s net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. A deferred inflow represents 
the acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. The Airport does not 
have any deferred inflows or deferred outflows as of December 31,2012. ! 

Because deferred outflows and deferred inflows are, by definition, neither assets nor liabilities, the 
statement of net assets title is now referred to as the statement of net position. The statement of net 
position reports net position as the difference between all other elements in a statement of net 
position and should be displayed in three components—net investment in capital assets, restricted net 
position (distmguishing between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted net position. 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced 
by the outstanding balance of borrowings for capital asset acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets, increased by deferred outflows of resources attributable to capital asset acquisition, 
constmction or improvement, and deferred inflows of resources attributable to either capital asset 
acquisition, construction, or improvement or to capital asset related debt. Capital-related debt or 
deferred mflows equal to unspent capital asset related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources • 
is included in calculating either restricted or unrestricted net position, dependmg upon whether the i 
unspent amounts are restricted. | 

Restricted net position reflects net position when there are limitations imposed on a net position's \ 
use by extemal parties such as creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments." I 
Restricted net position consists of restricted assets less liabilities related to restricted assets less i 
defenred inflows related to restricted assets. Liabilities and deferred inflows related to restricted ! 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

assets include liabilities and deferred inflows to be liquidated with restricted assets and arising from 
the same resource flow that results in restricted assets. 

Umestricted net position is the balance (deficit) of all other elements in a statement of net position 
remaining after net investment in capital assets and restricted net position. 

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, was issued in March 
2012 and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2012. This standard provides 
guidance for reporting the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of resoiux^s and 
deferred inflows of resources, required by GASB Statement No. 63. This standard also identifies 
certam items previously reported as assets and liabilities that the GASB determined should be 
recognized as revenues, expenses, or expenditures when incurred and not reported in statements of 
net position. 

(r) Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

Included in the Airport's cash balances are amounts deposited with commercial banks m interest bearing 
and noninterest bearmg demand accounts. The commercial bank balances are entirely insured by federal 
depository insurance or by collateral held by the financial institution in the Airport's name. 

The Airport follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for Extemal Investment Pools, which requires the adjustments of tiie carrying values of 
investments to fair value, which is based on available market values. The local govemment investment 
pool is a "2a-7-like" pool in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31; therefore, it is not presented at fair 
value but at its actual pooled share price, which approximates fair value. At December 31,2012 and 2011, 
the fair value of all securities regardless of balance sheet classifications as cash and cash equivalents or 
investments was as follows: 

2012 2011 

Securities: 
Common Stock: Airline sock 
Local govemment investment pool 

Investment in money market funds 

Total securities, at fair value 

$ 252,819 $ 
78,930.941 

138,009.799 

$ 217,193,559 $ 

172309 
92.393,128 

177.817,593 

270383,030 

27 (Continued) 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

These securities are held in the following accounts: 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments (unrestricted and restricted) 

Noncurrent assets: 
Investments 

Total cash and investments 

Less cash on deposit 

Total securities, at fair value 

2012 

$ 3,263,252 $ 
114,165,754 

103,027,805 

220,456,811 

(3,263,252) 

$ 217,193,559 $ 

2011 

2,199,471 
131,036,769 

139346,261 

272,582,501 

(2,199.471) 

270383.030 

The Airport is authorized to invest in securities as described in its investment policy, m each bond 
resolution and state statue. As of December 31,2012. and 2011. the Airport held the following investments 
as categorized below in accordance with GASB Statement No. 40. Deposit and Investment Risk 
Disclosures: 

Investment Maturities at December 31,2012 

Investment type 

Common Stock: Airline bankmptcies 
Local govemment investment pool 
Money market funds 

$ 

$ 

Less than 
lyear 

252,819 
78,930.941 

138,009,799 

217,193,559 

$ 

$ _ 

l t o 5 
Years 

- $ 

- $ 

Total 

252,819 
78,930,941 

138,009,799 

217,193,559 

Investment Maturities at December 31,2011 

Investment type 

Common Stock; Airline bankmptcies 
Local govemment investment pool 
Money market funds 

$ 

$ 

Less than 
lyear 

172309 
92393,128 

177,817,593 

270383.030 

$ 

$ 

l t o 5 
Years 

- $ 

- $ 

Total 

172309 
92393,128 

177,817,593 

270383,030 

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, investments are generally held to maturity. The Airport's investment policy requires the investment 
portfolio to be structured to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they come due. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

To the extent possible, investment maturities are matched with known cash needs and anticipated cash 
fiow requirements. Additionally, mamrity limitations for investments related to the issuance of debt are 
outlined in the Bond Resolution relating to the specific bond issue. 

Credit Risk: The Airport's general investment policy applies the prudent-person mle: 

Investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to 
seek reasonable income, preserve capital and, in general, avoid speculative investments. Airport policy 
lunits investments to the highest credit ratmg category of Standard & Poor's (S&P). Funds can only be 
invested in money market funds rated AAAm, AAm, or AAAm-G by S&P. 

In accordance with the Auport's investment policy and bond resolutions, all U.S. govemment agency 
securities held in the portfolio are either issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. govemment. 

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure ofthe 
counterparty, the Airport will not be able to recover the values of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in tiie possession of an outside party. All ofthe Airport's investments are either held in the name of 
the Airport or held in tmst under the Airport's name. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Airport's investments are not subject to a concentration of credit risk. 

In 2007, the Airport acquired common stock as a result of bankruptcy proceedings of three airlmes. The 
common stock with a market value of $252,819 at December 31, 2012 was subject to market risk as a 
result ofthe volatility ofthe stock market. 

LAMP: LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. Only local govemment entities havmg contracted to participate in LAMP have an 
investment interest in its pool of assets. The primaiy objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment 
for the placement of public funds m short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes 
only securities and otiier obligations in which local govemments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in 
accordance with Louisiana R.S. 33:2955. Accordingly, LAMP investments are restricted to securities 
issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. Govemment, or one of its agencies, 
enterprises, or instmmentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those securities. The 
dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and 
consists of no securities with a mamrity m excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly Uquid to 
provide immediate access to participants. The fair market value of investments is determined on a weekly 
basis to monitor any variances between amortized cost and market value. For purposes of determining 
participants' shares, investments are valued at amortized cost. 

(3) Summary of Restricted Assets 

Assets restricted for specific purposes in accordance with bond indentures and other legal restrictions are 
composed ofthe following at December 31.2012 and 2011: 
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PiOtOS t o ^^HSBCtU ^***fcwwTt* 

E)eoenib« 31,2012 and 2011 

2012 

Asseti: 
Cash end ceitificates of 

deposits S 
Dieyfia Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
/PMU.S.-fteasmyaiid 

V£. moaty madcet fimd 
Pasteager &ciU^ 

cfaaigcs receivaote 
Capital grant receivablB 
Customer facOiiy 

durges lecdvable 

Debt 
tervkc 
ftmd 

— 
9.312.808 

12.927.531 

— 
— 

_ 

Debt 
service 
reserve 
ftmd 

18.399^90 

14.435.500 

— 

— 

Coverage 
accoont 

— 
1.923.544 

— 

— 

— 

Ineligible 
•nb-Accoimt 

— 
3.038.226 

— 

— 

— 

Opcrstlans 
and 

mahifrnancg 
reserve 
ftmd 

— 
8.373.167 

— 

_ 

Capital 
Improvement 

niud 

— 
63.245.014 

— 

— 

_ 

Becdpta 
ftmd 

524 

463,770 

— 

— 
— 

— 

RoDover 
ftmd 

3.722379 

— 

— 

PFC 
collect 

621,941 

— 

— 

— 
— 

— 

Bond 
costs 

— 
89.299 

— 

— 

— 

ParlduQ 
Facmty 
Reserve 

— 

— 
1,097.332 

— 

— 

RecetvaUce 

— $ 

— 

— 
1,696.036 
1.966,988 

818338 

Total 

4344,844 

96.472,051 

36.833,530 

1.696,036 
1,966,988 

818,338 

t 22^40.339 32,834,890 1.923.544 3.038,226 8.373.167 89.299 1.097.332 4.481.362 S 142,131.787 

2011 
Operations 

tsets: 
Ca^ and certificates of 

deposits S 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Managonent 
JPM U.S. Treastoy end 

U.S. moii^ mailcei fimd 
Passenger &ciL^ 

charges receivable 
Capital grant receivable 
Cnstomer Ocflity 

duBses receivable 

«. 

Debt 
service 
ftmd 

— 
9.246.933 

12,745,332 

— 
— 

— 
21,992.265 

Debt 
service -
reserve 
ftmd 

24 

18.687.373 

14,435,500 

— 
— 

— 
33.122.897 

Coverage Indlgflile reserve 
account sob-eccovnt ftmd 

Improvemait Receipts Rollover PFC 
ftmd ftmd ftmd collect 

3,721,947 117,657 

1.923.544 3,545,584 — 102.584.147 715,020 

— — 8373.167 — — 

1,923344 3345384 8373.167 102384.147 715.020 3.721.947 117.657 

Bond 
costs 

2,224 

— 

— 

2324 

Parking 
Fadlity 
Reserve 

-

1.097319 

— 

__ 
1,097319 

Receinbles 

-

-
2,048,883 
1.897,197 

802,565 

^.748.645 

S 

«! 

Tofal 

3.839,628 

136,704,825 

36.651318 

2.048,883 
1.897,197 

802.563 

181.944.416 
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Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(4) Capital Assets 

Capital assets include assets acquired with the Airport's own fiinds as well as those acquired through 
resources extemally restricted for capital acquisition. A summary of changes in capital assets for the years 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Air rights 
Constmction in progress 

Total capital assets 
not being 
depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and furnishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and fiimishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Balance 
December 31, 

2011 

$ 85.309,433 $ 
22.282,449 

129.621.334 

237.213.216 

341,919,646 
373,917.833 

6.496,427 
713,262 

7.786,124 
3,074.179 

733,907,471 

971.120,687 

215,064.231 
253,768.218 

5.681,698 
233,882 

5.203,370 
3.067.892 

483.019,291 

$ 488,101.396 $ 

Additions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

- $ 
-

85,357,111 

85,357.111 

45,027,531 
25,552,628 

793,703 
9,784 

6,468,468 
-

77.852.114 

163,209.225 

14,036,694 
17.965,233 

273,065 
164,242 
294,586 

1,179 

32,734,999 

130,474,226 $ 

Deletions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

- $ 
-

(81.503,456) 

(81.503,456) 

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

(81,503.456) 

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

(81.503.456) $ 

Balance 
December 31, 

2012 

85,309.433 
22.282.449 

133.474.989 

241.066,871 

386,947,177 
399,470,461 

7,290,130 
723,046 

14.254,592 
3.074.179 

811.759,585 

1.052.826.456 

229,100.925 
271,733.451 

5,954.763 
398,124 

5.497.956 
3,069,071 

515,754.290 

537.072,166 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Air rights 
Constmction in progress 

Total capital assets 
not being 
depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and tumishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
UtiUties 
Heliport 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and fiimishings 
Equipment 
Computers 
Utilities 
Heliport 

Total accumulated 
depreciadon 

Total capital assets, net 

Balance 
December 31, 

2010 

$ 85,432,116 $ 
22,170,230 
86,273,138 

193,875,484 

338,033,354 
331,640,337 

6,589,880 
621,340 

7.786,124 
3.069.679 

687,740,714 

881,616,198 

199.860.152 
238.111,598 

5,634,364 
100,883 

4,944,736 
3,067,538 

451.719,271 

$ 429,896,927 $ 

Additions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

. $ 
112.219 

92.911,590 

93,023,809 

3,886.292 
44,098,518 

114.177 
91,922 

-
4.500 

48,195.409 

141,219,218 

15.204,079 
16,716.298 

254.964 
132,999 
258,634 

354 

32,567.328 

108,651,890 $ 

Deletions/ 
transfers 
during 
year 

(122,683) $ 
-

(49,563,394) 

(49.686,077) 

-
(1,821,022) 

(207,630) 
-
-
-

(2,028.652) 

(51.714.729) 

-
(1.059,678) 

(207,630) 
-
-
-

(1,267.308) 

(50,447.811) $ 

j 

1 

Balance 1 
December 31, I 

2011 ' 
1 

1 
85,309,433 j 
22.282.449 

129,621.334 
t 

1 

237,213.216 

i 
341.919,646 1 
373.917,833 

6.496.427 
713,262 ; 

7.786,124 
3.074,179 

733,907,471 

971,120.687 

215.064,231 
253,768.218 

5,681.698 
233,882 

5,203,370 
3,067,892 

483,019,291 

488.101,396 
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December 31.2012 and 2011 

Construction in progress is composed ofthe followmg at December 31,2012: 

Description 

Consolidated Rent A Car Facility 

Terminal Improvements Phase TV 

Consolidated Checkpoint 

Utility Building 

Long Term Development-Design Phase 

Terminal Improvements Phase IVA 

Access Road Upgrade 

Concourse B Renovation 

Expansion of Taxiway Gulf Phase I 

Perimeter Fence 

Concourse D Refurbishment 

Long Term Development Project 

Land Development & Reuse Plan 

Miscellaneous Projects under $1,000,000 

Project 
authorization 

December 31, 
2012 

Remaining 
commitments 

99.796.192 $ 

16,807,477 

15,000,000 

10,790,788 

5.000.000 

4.353.000 

2,829.000 

2.700,000 

2,538.197 

2,530,000 

2.000.000 

2,000,000 
1.200.000 

4,809.055 

172,184,709 $ 

102,145.383 $ 

11,449,462 

18,270 

10.596.654 

733.663 
3,095.071 

1.071,405 

150,061 

1,756,885 

330,626 

10.790 

8,556 
25,972 

2.082,191 

133,474,989 $ 

-

5.358,015 

14,981,730 

194,134 

4,266,337 

1,257,929 

1,757,595 

2,549,939 

781,312 

2,199,374 

1,989,210 

1,991,444 

1,174,028 

2,726,864 

41,227,911 
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December31,2012 and 2011 

(5) Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt activity for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 was as follows: 

Long-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable: 
Scries 2007A Revenue Bonds, 

fixed interest rate 
January 1.2038 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2007B-1 Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2020 
at 4.25% final mattirity 

Series 2007B-2 Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2019 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009A-1 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1,2023 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009A-2 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1,2023 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009B Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2015 
at 4.50% final maturity 

Series 2009C Revenue Refiinding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1,2012 
at 3.50% final maturity 

Series 2009A GO ZONE CFC 
Revenue bonds, fixed interest 
rate; January 1,2040 
at 4.625% final maturity 

Balance 
December 31. 

2011 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
Decembers!, 

2012 

Amounts 
due within 
one Year 

$ 62.850,000 $ 

4;X95,000 

14.110,000 

73,960,000 

23.055.000 

27,140.000 

4.200.000 

96,515.000 

(1,110.000) $ 61.740.000 $ 1.160.000 

4.295,000 

(1,655,000) 12,455,000 

73.960.000 

23.055.000 

(3.930,000) 23,210.000 

(4,200,000) 

1,740,000 

8.495,000 

96.515.000 
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Lons-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable: 
Series 2010A GO ZONE PFC 

Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate. January 1.2041 
at 5.25% fmal maturity 

Series 2010B GO ZONE PFC 
Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate. January 1.2038 
at 5.125% final maturity 

Less: 
Unamortized loss on advance 

refunding 
Unamortized discount on 

bonds 
Unamortized premium on 

bonds 

Loans Payable: 
Go Zone 

Other Liabilities: 
GO Zone Interest Payable 

Balance 
December 31. 

2011 

$ 52,355,000 $ 

1,285.000 

359,765.000 

(25.909.478) 

(3.483.456) 

691.748 

331,063,814 

35.371.990 

35.371.990 

820.630 

820,630 

$ 367.256.434 $ 

Additions 

- $ 

-

_ 

-

-

-
. 

-

. 

1,602.188 

1.602,188 

1.602,188 $ 

Deductions 

- $ 

-

(10.895,000) 

2.381,121 

162.494 

(26,606) 

(8,377.991) 

. 

. 

(8.377,990) $ 

Balance 
December 31, 

2012 

52.355,000 $ 

1.285.000 

348,870.000 

(23.528,357) 

(3,320,962) 

665.142 

322,685.823 

35.371.990 . 

35,371,990 

2,422,818 

2.422.818 

360,480.632 $ 

Amounts 
due within 
one year 

-

. 

11,395,000 

-

-

. 

11.395.000 

3,446.421 

3.446.421 

2,422,818 

2.422.818 

17.264,239 
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Long-Term Debt 

Balance 
December 31, 

2010 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
December 31, 

2011 

Amounts 
due within 
one Year 

Bonds Payable: 
Series 2007A Revenue Bonds, 

fixed interest rate 
January 1,2038 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Scries 2007B-1 Revenue Refiinding 
Bonds, fixed interest rate . 
January 1.2020 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2007B-2 Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2019 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009A-1 Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2023 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009A-2 Revenue Refiinding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2023 
at 4.25% final maturity 

Series 2009B Revenue Refunding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1.2015 
at 4.50% final maturity 

Series 2009C Revenue Refimding 
bonds, fixed interest rate 
January 1,2012 
at 3.50% fmal maturity 

Series 2009A GO ZONE CFC 
Revenue bonds, fixed interest 
rate; January 1,2040 
at 4.625% final maturity 

$ 63,910,000 $ 

4.295.000 

15.685,000 

- $ (1,060,000)$ 62.850,000 $ 1.110,000 

4.295,000 

(1.575,000) 

73.960.000 

23,055.000 

27.140.000 

12.015.000 

96.515.000 

(7.815.000) 

14.110,000 

73,960,000 

23,055,000 

27,140.000 

4.200.000 

96.515.000 

1,655.000 

3.930,000 

4.200,000 
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Long-Term Debt 
Bonds Payable: 
Series 2010A GO ZONE PFC 

Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate, January 1,2041 
at 5.25% final maturity 

Series 20I0B GO ZONE PFC 
Revenue Bonds, fixed interest 
rate. January 1.2038 
at 5.125% final maturity 

Balance 
December 31, 

2010 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
December 31, 

2011 

Amounts 
due within 
one year 

$ 52,355,000 $ 

1,285.000 

$ 52.355,000 $ 

1.285,000 

Less: 
Unamortized loss on advance 

refunding 
Unamortized discount on 

bonds 
Unamortized premium on 

bonds 

Loans Payable: 
Go Zone 

Other Liabilities: 
GO Zone Interest Payable 

370.215,000 

(28.290,599) 

(3,645.950) 

718.353 

338.996,804 

35371,990 
35,371.990 

$ 374,368,794 $ 

-

. 

-

820,630 

820.630 $ 

(10,450,000) 

2.381.121 

162.494 

(26,605) 

(7,932,990) 

1 

(7,932,990) $ 

359,765.000 

(25,909,478) 

(3.483.456) 

691.748 

331.063.814 

35.371.990 
35,371,990 

820,630 

367,256,434 $ 

10,895,000 

10.895,000 

1.684.138 
1,684.138 

820.630 

13,399,768 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

Debt service requirements to maturity for all outstanding bonds are as follows: 

Interest Principal Total 
Bonds Payable: 

December 31: 
2013 $ 18,936,196 $ 11.395,000 $ 30,331,196 
2014 18.363.190 11,950.000 30,313,190 
2015 ' 17,722.633 14,210,000 31.932,633 
2016 17.032,925 14,895.000 31,927,925 
2017 16,319,706 15,590.000 31.909,706 
2018-2022 68.209,557 88,685,000 156.894,557 
2023-2027 46,826,475 48,215,000 95.041,475 
2028-2032 35,257,544 45,015,000 80.272,544 
2033-2037 20.339.960 59,415,000 79.754.960 
2038-2041 3.555.661 39,500,000 43,055,661 

$ 262,563,847 $ 348,870,000 $ 611.433.847 

Debt service reqmrements to maturity for all outstanding loans payable are as follows: 

Interest Principal Total 
Loans Payable; 

December 31: 
2012 (not paid as of year end) $ 1.641.260 $ 1,684.138 $ 3,325,398 
2013 1,563,116 1,762,282 3,325,398 
2014 1,481,346 1,844,052 3,325,398 
2015 1.395,782 1,929.616 3,325,398 
2016 1.306,248 2.019.150 3,325.398 
2017 1,212,560 2,112.839 3.325,399 
2018-2022 4,498,060 12,128,933 16,626,993 
2023-2026 1,410,614 11,890,980 13,301.594 

$ 14,508,986 $ 35,371,990 $ 49,880.976 

The Board received approval for participation in the Gulf Tax Credit Bonds Program (Go Zone Tax Credit 
Bonds) sponsored by the State of Louisiana in an amount not exceeding $36,000,000. The Airport was 
approved for $35,371,990 for an interest free period of 60 months. On August 1, 2006, Hancock Bank as 
escrow tmstee for the State of Louisiana with respect to its GO Zone Tax Credit Bonds Program 
transferred to the Trustee the amount of $10,242,550 to be used to pay the Aupst 2,2006 debt service on 
the bonds and related mterest rate swap payments. Hancock Bank transferred an additional $25,129,440 in 
debt service between August 2006 and July 2008 which brought the loan to the approval amount of 
$35,371,990 as of December 31.2012. The Trustee continues to be responsible for making all debt service 
payments on the bonds. The Airport is currently appealing the repayment schedule for the Go Zone loan. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31.2012 and 2011 

As of June 28, 2013, the required interest payments of $820,630 due Januaiy 15, 2012 and July 15, 2012 
have been remitted. 

(6) Capital Contributions and Transfers 

(Capital contributions recorded by the Auport represent amounts received from the federal govemment to 
finance the cost of constmction of airport facilities. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, tiie FAA contributed $2,749,956. During tiie year ended 
December 31, 2011. the FAA contributed $12,043,255, and the Transportation Security Administration 
contributed $250,215. 

(7) Pension Plan 

Employees and ofticers of ±e Airport are eligible for membership in the Employees* Retirement System of 
the City of New Orleans (the Plan), a defined benefit contributory retirement plan. A separate financial 
report on the plan for the year ended December 31, 2011 containmg additional information required under 
GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Govemmental Employers, is 
available fi*om the City of New Orleans Director of Finance, 1300 Perdido Street, Room 1E12, New 
Orleans, Louisiana 70112, (504) 658-1850. 

The Airport's annual contribution to the Employees* Retirement System is based on the amount 
determined by the actuaiy of the Plan, which mcludes amortization of past service costs over a period of 
30years. The Airport's contribution to the Plan for the years ended December31. 2012 and 2011 was 
$1,587,580 and $1,427,148, respectively. 

(8) Rentals under Operating Leases 

The Airport leases space in its terminal to various airlines, concessionaires, and others. These leases are for 
varying periods ranging from one to ten years and require the payment of minimum annual rentals. On 
January 1, 2009, a new Airline Lease and Use Agreement went into effect with all Signatory airlines 
paying signatory airlines rates and charges in accordance with the new lease agreement. 

The Airport parking garage facility (the "Facility") was constmcted on land leased by a 501(c) 3 nonprofit 
corporation (the Corporation) from the Airport pursuant to a parking garage ground lease (the "ground 
lease") dated January 1, 2001. The commencement date as defmed in the ground lease went into effect 
January 1, 2002, and the ground rental term began. In accordance with the ground lease, the Corporation is 
requhed to design, finance, constmct, and operate the Facility. The Facility is being financed by the 
Corporation with $39.4 million of tax-exempt bonds. The bonds are not an obligation of tiie Airport. The 
initial term of the ground lease is ten years with three renewal periods of ten years at the option of the 
Corporation. During tiie term ofthe ground lease, the Corporation will pay the Airport $10,624 a month 
plus percentage rent of 6% of gross revenues generated from the Facility in excess of $7.0 million per year 
plus net cash flow rent, as defined in the ground lease. 

The payment of rent is subject to a minimum annual guarantee payment, as defmed in the ground lease. 
The fixed rent shall increase by 3% per annum, effective on the first day of each lease year during the term. 
The 2012 montiily ground rent was $14,278. and 2011 monthly ground rent was $13,862. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit of tiie City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Fmancial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

The following is a schedule by year of aggregate future mmimum rentals receivable on noncancelable 
operating leases as of December 31,2012: 

2013 6,154.798 
2014 5.493.622 
2015 5.098.714 
2016 5.060.892 
2017 5,010,913 
2018-2023 7.696.471 

$ 34,515.410 

These amounts do not mclude contmgent rentals which may be received under most of tiie leases; such 
contmgent rentals, mcludmg month-to-month concession agreements, amounted to $5,042,568 m 2012 and 
$4,661,120 m 2011. 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Self-Insurance 

The Airport is msured for hospitalization and unemployment losses and clauns under the City of 
New Orleans* self-insurance program. The Airport pays premiums to the City of New Orleans' 
unemployment self-insurance program, and the Airport and its employees pay premiums to the City 
of New Orleans' hospitalization self-insurance program. 

(2r) Commitments 

In the normal course of business, the Airport enters into various commitments and contingent 
liabilities, such as constmction contracts and service agreements, which are not reflected m the 
accompanying financial statements. 

(c) Claims and Judgments 

Hiere are several pending lawsuits m which the Airport is involved. Based upon review and 
evaluation of such lawsuits and the advice of legal counsel, management does not believe that the 
ultimate outcome of such htigation and not covered by insurance will be material to the Airport's 
financial position except as discussed below. 

The Airport is involved in litigation regarding its acquisition of real estate. Plaintiffs are claiming 
damages in the amoimt of $1.6 million. The final results of such litigation carmot be determined at 
this tune. Management believes it will not exceed $1 million. At this time, no amount has been 
accmed in the fmancial statements. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT j 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,2012 and 2011 

(d) Federal Financial Assistance 

The Airport participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs. Although the grant 
programs have been audited through December 31, 2012 in accordance with the Smgle Audit Act of 
1996, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits by govemmental agencies. 

(10) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available 
to be issued, June 28,2013, and determined that there were no subsequent events requiring disclosure. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Investments 

Year ended December 31,2012 

Schedule 1 

Description 

Unrestricted investments: 
Special Receipts: 

Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 
Cash Management 

The Bank of New York Mellon 
JPM U.S. Treasury Plus 

Investments 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Year 
acquired 

Maturity 
date Book value 

2008 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 1.369,178 

Fair value 

1,187.200 $ 1,187,200 

1369,178 

PFC Reimbursement: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Managonent 
The Bank of New York MeUon 

Stock: Airline Bankruptcies 

City of New Orleans: 
LAMP - Sales Tax/Gcncral Purpose 

LAMP - Use & Lease General Purpose 

Total unrestricted investments 

2008 

2007 

2003 

2011 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

2.556378 

2,147,840 

252,819 

71.705.991 

3.502.571 
75.208,562 

80.165.600 

2,556378 

2,147,840 

252.819 

71,705.991 

3,502,571 
75.208,562 

80.165.600 

Restricted investments: 
City of New Orleans: 

LAMP - Rollover Coverage 2009 K/A 3.722379 3,722379 

CIF-Parknig Facility Loan: 
JPM U.S. Trcasuiy Plus 

Investments 
The Bank of New York Mellon 2010 N/A 1.097,332 1,097,332 

Debt Service Fund: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

JPM U S . Treasury Plus 
Investments 

The Bank of New York Mellon 

2008 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

Debt Service Reserve Fund: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

JPM U.S. Treasury Plus 
Investments 

The Bank of New York Mellon 

2009 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

9312.808 

18399390 

14.435.500 

32.834,890 

9312,808 

12,927,531 12,927.531 

22340,339 22.240,339 

18399390 

14,435.500 

32,834,890 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orieans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Investments 

Year ended December 31,2012 

Schedule 1 

Description 

Ineligible Sub-Account: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Operations and Mmntenance: 
Reserve fimd: 

JPM U.S. Treasury Plus 
Investments 

The Bank of New York MeUon 

Receipts Fund: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York MeUon 

CFC Restricted: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash ManagemeiU 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Year 
acquired 

2009 

2009 

2009 

2010 

Maturity 
date 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Book value 

3,038,226 

46.032 

Fair value 

3,038326 

8373.167 8373.167 

46,032 

2,430.581 2,430,581 

Time Rjrimbursement: 
Dreyfiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

Project Account: 
Dr^fiis Treasury Prime 

Cash Managonent 
The Bank of New York Mellon 

PFC Restricted: 
Dreyfus Treasury Prime 

Cash Management 
The Bank of New York MeUon 

2009 

2009 

2009 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

1368.054 1,568,054 

43307.477 43.207.477 

18.469,483 18.469.483 

Total restricted investments 
Total all investments 

137,027.959 137,027.959 
$ 217.193.559 $ 217.193,559 

See accompanying independent auditors* report 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orleans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Operating Revenues and Expenses by Area of Activity 

Year ended December 31, 2012 

Schedule 2 

Operating revenues 
Direct expenses 

Operating revenues, less direct expenses 

Depreciation of cost center assets 

Operating revenues, less direct expenses and 
depreciation 

Other operating expenses: 
Depreciation of non-cost center assets 
Administrative 

Total other operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Airfield 

15,608.960 $ 
2,554,591 

13.054,369 

14.037,873 

Terminal 
buildings 

56,887,020 $ 
16.028,530 

40,858,490 

16.121,592 

Ground 
transportation 

2,160,224 $ 
3,290,932 

(1,130.708) 

912,098 

(983,504) $ 24.736.898 $ (2,042,806) 

Total 

74.656,204 

21.874,053 

52,782.151 

31,071,563 

21,710,588 

1,663,436 
25,275,670 

26,939.106 

$ (5.228,518) 

See accompanying independent auditors* report. 
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Schedule 3 
LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

(A Proprietary Component Unit ofthe City of New Orieans) 

Supplemental Schedule of Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio as Required under 
the General Revenue Bond Trust Indenture Dated February 1,2009 

Year ended December 31,2012 

(Unaudited) 

Revenues: 
Airline rentals and landing fees $ 46,500,250 
Otiier operatmg revenues 28,155,951 
Nonoperating revenues 632,084 
Rollover coverage 3,719,960 

Total revenues 

Less reserve requirements: 
Operation and maintenance e:q)enses 

Net revenues 

Debt service fund requhement 
Principal payments 
Interest expense 

Total debt service fimd requhement 

Historical debt service coverage ratio 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 

(1) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying supplemental schedule has been prepared in accordance with the General Revenue Bond 
Trust Indenture dated February 1, 2009. The supplemental schedule excludes certain revenues and expenses 
as defined in the trust indenture. 

(2) Rollover Coverage 

On November 6, 2009, the Board approved the Rollover Coverage for fiscal years 2010-2012 m the amounts 
of $3,719,573. $3,720,173, and $3,719,960 respectively. The funds are transferred montiily. in ratable 
portions ofthe total, to tfie NOAB Rollover Coverage Account held by tiie City of New Orleans, and then 
transferred to the airport operating account, held by the City of New Orieans in January 2013. 

79,008.245 

47.149,722 

$ 

$ 

$ 

31,858.523 

8.495,000 
6,384,840 

14,879,840 

2.14 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Andit of Financial Statements Perfonned in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States, the financial statements ofthe Louis Armstrong 
New Orleans International Airport (the Anport), as of and for the year ended December 31,2012, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Airport's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 28,2013. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management of tiie Auport is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control 
(internal control) over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the financial 
statements, we considered the Airport's intemal control over fmancial reporting to detemiine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opmion on the effectiveness ofthe Airport's 
intemal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
ofthe Auporf s intemal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of perfomiing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
ofthe financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control tiiat is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet unportant enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration ofthe intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
nught be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in mtemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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In addition, we noted certain other matters regarding the intemal control over financial reporting 
that we reported to management ofthe Airport in a separate letter dated June 28,2013. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Airport's financial statements are :̂eG 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards and which are 
described m the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2012 - L 

The Airport's Response to Findings 

The Airport's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Airport's response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordmgly, we express no 
opinion on it 

Purpose of tills Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of mtemal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opiiuon on the effectiveness ofthe 
entity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an inte^^ part of an audit perfonned in 
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, 
under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by tiie Legislative Auditor as a 
public document 

Metairie, Louisiana 
June 28,2012 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2012 

Finding 2012 - 1 : Federal State & Citv Regulations 

Cntena 

Condition 

Effect 

Recommendation 

FAA AIP grant assurances and grant agreements require tiie Airport to 
establish and maintam a fee and rental stmcture for all facilities and 
services at the airport which will make the Airport as self-sustaining as 
possible under circumstances existing at each particular airport The 
Airport is also requucd to comply with the provisions of the Public Bid 
Law, R.S. 41:1211 and the provisions for leases of public lands, as 
required by Louisiana R.S. 2:135.1(3) in leasing Airport properties. City 
Charter Section 6-308(5) and Executive Order MJL 10-05 also require the 
Airport to comply witii the State of Louisiana laws and City regulations 
regarding the lease of municipal-owned property. 

As of December 31, 2012, four of the Airport leases may not be in 
compliance with the FAA AIP grant assurances and grant agreements, 
Louisiana R.S. 2:135.1(3), Public Bid Law, R.S. 41:1211, City Charter 
Section 6-308(5), and Executive Order MJL 10-05 as to the fee and rental 
stmcture requirements for the lease of public property. Three of the four 
Airport leases also appear not in compliance whh the same grant 
assurances and agreements, statute, bid law, charter and executive order as 
to the advertisement provisions for the lease of public lands. 

The leases described above are in violation of FAA AIP grant assurances 
and grant agreements, Louisiana R.S. 2:135.1(3), Public Bid Law, R.S. 
41:1211, City Charter Section 6-308(5), and Executive Order MJL 10-05. 

The Airport should adopt a set of policies and procedures to ensure 
specific compliance with the advertisement, fee and rental rate 
requirements for compliance with FAA AIP grant assurances and grant 
agreements, Louisiana R.S. 2:135.1(3), Public Bid Law, R.S. 41:1211, 
City Charter Section 6-308(5), and Executive Order MJL 10-05 for all 
properties to be leased at the Airport. 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2012 

Finding 2012-1 : Federal State & Citv Regulations (continued) 

Management's 
Response This finding stems from activities originating prior to the current Airport 

Administration, A new Airport Director was retained in May 2010. bi 
January 2011, the Airport commenced hiring a new executive team. Once 
the executive team was in place, additional hiring occurred throughout 
2011 that led to the establishment of critical new departments such as 
Planning, Design and Construction and Proct4rement, 

Beginning in the fall of 2011 and continuing into 2012, the Airport staff 
began identifying the lack of current contracts, including undocumented 
and ejq>ired leases. In 2012, the Airport self-disclosed its findings 
publically (including disclosure to the Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA)) and began tmdertaking corrective measures. This iru l̂uded 
retaining outside legal counsel to assist Airport staff in situating aver 160 
contracts by completing solicitations and, as appropriate, direct 
negotiation. 

Near the end of 2012, the Airport discovered four additional off-Airport 
leases that were ejqtired and/or undocumented Upon discovery, the 
Airport publically disclosed its findings to the expropriate agencies and 
officials, incltuiing the FAA. Stcffhas been actively working to resolve this 
issue and is confident the leases will be corrected in 2013, 

The new Airport Administration is committed to compliance with all 
federal state and local laws, rules and regulations. The Airport will 
evaluate the need to establish such policies or procedures to insure 
compliance. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Siunmary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2012 

Finding 2011 - 1 : Contract Documentation 

Criteria 

Condition 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Current Status 

The Airport does not have signed, formalized documentation for contracts 
and/or amendments with eight contracting parties on capital projects 
related to airport improvements projects (AP) fiom federal funding 
sources. 

In prior periods, the Airport began capital projects without signed 
documentation for contracts and/or amendments. 

The transactions described above are in violation of Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) and other agency compliance requirements. 

These contracts and/or amendments should be formalized and signed by all 
parties involved in the capital project 

Resolved 
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To the City of New Orleans Aviation Board 
Louis Armstrong International Airport 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements ofthe Louisiana Armstrong International Airport (the Auport), 
a proprietary component unit of the City of New Orleans, as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2012, and have issued our report thereon dated June 28,2013. In planning and performing our audit of tiie 
fmancial statements of the Airport, we considered mtemal control as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressmg our opinion on the fmancial statements but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on tiie effectiveness of the Airport's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not 
e3q)ress an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Airport's intemal control. 

During our audit we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational matters tiiat are 
presented for your consideration. Hiese comments and recommendations, all of which have b e ^ 
discussed vnth the appropriate members of management, are intended to improve intemal control or result 
in other operating efficiencies and are summarized as follows: 

2012-01 Theft 

Observation 

The Airport's procedures for identification badges and fingerprinting receipts did not include a routine 
independent reconciliation process between the receipt book totals and the subsequent bank deposits that 
resulted in an e^qiosure totaling approximately $4,905. The Airport employee responsible for the deposits 
to the bank accoimt had access to cash amounts included in these deposits. The Airport reported tiiese 
kregularities to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, Jefferson Parish District Attorney's Office and City of 
New Orleans OfSce of Inspector General for further investigation. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that tiie NOAB enhance its procedures to have accounting persormel verify that all 
receipts, vAnch. are pre-numbered, are accounted for, and that the subsequent deposit's beginning ticket 
number is in sequence with the prior bank deposits ending sequence number. Additionally, someone in 
either Security or Accounting should reconcile the receipt totals from Security Office to c a ^ received for 
deposit, and then verify that the amount deposited in the bank agrees to what was received firom Security. 
The bank account should then be reconciled by personnel who do not have contact with cash collected. 

We also recommend that a copy of the receipts log should be provided to someone in accounting other 
than the person responsible for the deposit This person should verify that the amounts m the log match 
the validated deposit tickets. Deposits should also be made timely after receipt and duplicate d ^ s i t 
tickets should be provided to the person responsible for checking the logs. 
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Management's Response 

In February 2013, the Airport discovered an irregularity in its controls affecting cash collections and 
deposits for identification badges and fingerprinting. The Airport promptly reported the matter to the 
appropriate authorities, including the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, Jefferson Parish District Attomey *s 
Cffice and City of New Orleans Office of Inspector General 

The Airport responded immediately to the discovery and implemented new procedures to ensure the 
timely identification of all receipts. The procedures implemented include, discontinuing the acceptance of 
cash payments and reconciliation procedures to verify that all receipts, which are pre-numbered, are 
accounted for, and that the subsequent deposit's beginning ticket number is in sequence with the prior 
bank deposits ending sequence number. 

AdditioTudty, the Airport is now reconciling the receipt totals from the Security Office to the deposits 
made by Accounting, arui verifying that the amount deposited in the bank agrees to what was received 
from the Security Office by an Accounting employee other than the person responsible for the funds 
received or deposited. As the Airport was implementing these new procedures, the Airport also requested 
Postlethwaite & Netterville to perform an irulepefuient investigative audit, which was completed in March 
2013. 

During Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2011, and during Fisc(d Year Eruied December 31, 2012, recent 
Airport numagement uncovered findings of non-compliance and weakness in intemal controls and has 
voluntarily reported its findings to the Auditor, elected officials and enforcement agencies. The Airport is 
committed to ensure that sufficient intemal controls are properly in place arui functioning effectively in 
all areas of its operations and it will continue to implement improvements to its controls wherever 
necessary to ensure its fiduciary responsibilities as stewards ofthe public's resources. 

This report is intended solely for tiie information of tiie Airport, tiie Airport's management; federal, state 
and city awarding agencies; and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

The Airport's written response to our comments and recommendations has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied m the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it 

Metairie, Louisiana 
June 28,2013 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with 
Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge 
Program, on Intemal Control over Compliance, and on the 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

New Orleans Aviation Board and the 
City Council ofthe City of New Orleans, Louisiana: 

Report on Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Louis Armstrong International Airport (the Airport), a component 
unit of the City of New Orleans, witii tiie compliance requirements described m the Passenger Facility 
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (the Guide), issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, for 
its passenger facility charge program fbr the year ended December 31,2012. 

Management's Resportsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance ^ t h the requhements of laws and regulations applicable to its 
passenger facility charge program. 

Audkors' Responsibility * 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Airport's compliance based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generaUy accepted m the Uiuted States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller Genei^ of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the 
passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the Alport's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audh provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. However, our audit does not 
provide a legal determination ofthe Airport's compliance with those requirements. 

Opinion 

In our opiiuon, the Airport complied, in all material respects, with the requhements referred to above that 
are applicable to its passenger faciUty charge program for the year December 31,2012. 
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Report on Intemal Control over Compliance 

Management ofthe Airport is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective mtemal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the passenger 
facility charge program. In plannmg and perfoiming our audit of compliance, we considered the Airport's 
intemal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the 
passenger &cihty charge program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressmg our opinion on compliance and to test and report on mtemal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe 
Airport's intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofthe Airport's intemal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with the Guide on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combmation of deficiencies, in intemal 
control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncomphance with the 
compliance ofthe Guide will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in int^nal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose describes in the first 
paragraph of tiiis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

We have audited the basic fmancial statements ofthe Airport as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2012, and the related notes to the fiyniancial statements, which collectively comprise the Airport's basic 
financial statements. We have issued our report thereon dated June 28,2013, which contained unmodified 
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opiiuon on 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. Tlie accompanying schedule of revenues and expenditures 
of passenger facility charges is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required in the Guide 
and is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived firom and relates directly to the underl>dng accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in tiie audit ofthe financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the mformation is fahly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

- 2 -

P&N 



The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements ofthe 
Guide. However, under Louisiana Revised Stamte 24:513, tiiis report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document 

Metahie, Louisiana 
June 28,2013 
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LOUIS A R M S T R O N G N E W O R L E A N S I N T E R N A T I O N A L A I R P O R T 
Sdiedole of Revenoes and Eiqieiiditiires of Passenger Ftuaihy Charges 

For O e year ended December 31 ,2012 

Rffvomes: 
Collections 

Total Revemiet 

Applteatian 02-OS: 
PRtJect 03-00] 
Project 05-002 
Prpject 03-003 
Project QS-004 
Project 03-005 
Project 05-006 
Project 05-007-
Project 03-008' 
Project 03-010' 
Prqject 05-011 • 
Pngect 03-013 • 
Project 05-014-
Project 03-013 • 
Project 03-016 • 
Project 05-017 • 
Project 03-018 • 
Projea05-019-
Project 03-020 -

ARFF Pmnieter Road, Stage I (1) 
ARFF Penmeter RoacL Stage n (I) 
ARFF PerimetBT Road, Stage n i (1) 
Airfield L i ^ n b g Contnd System (1) 

' Asbestos Removal Program 
Concourse D Reeonstniction (I) 
East Air Cargo Access Roads 
East Air Cargo Apron, Stage I 
East/West Tax iw^ CVFR KunfVBy) (I) 
Fac Code Compliance Program 
North GA Access Road 
NoiA Genera! Aviation Apron. Stage 1 
RebabilitBte Rimw^rs and Taxiwivs (1) 

Update Airfield Guidance Sign System (I) 
Upper Level Roadway Canopy 
West Terminal Expansion (I) 
West Terminal UtUities Expansion (I) 

Total Application • 02-03 

Application 02-06 
Project 06-001 - Aircraft Loading Bridges 
Project 06-003 • Airfield Lijiiting Control Vauh Altemaltve Power Source (2) 
Project 06-004 • Airport Trench Dnnns (2) 
Project 06-006 - Concourse C Recoostruction (2) 
Project 06-007 - Environmental Impact Study for New Air Carrier Runway (2) 
Project 06-008 - Expansion of Concourse D (2) 
Prpject 06-010 - New Aircraft Rescue and Fire Flatting (ARFF) Station (2) 
Project06-01l -RehabilitBteRotatiagBeacon(2) 
Pn>ject06-0I2-Rehabilitate Ruowqyl/I9 (2) 
Project 06-013 - Rehabilitaa Runway 10/28 (2) 
Project06-014-Rehabilitate TaxiwvSterrB(2) 
Project 06-015 - South Lafon Airpark Land Purchase 
Project 06-017 - Tennina] HVAC Rehabilitation 
Project06-0]8- West Air Cargo Complex Land Acquisition Program 

Total Application - 02-06 

Program Total 
Jamunyl. 

2012 

S 264,222,764 
14,297.409 

278.520.173 

1,533,327 
636,947 
896,360 
650.437 

3.834.669 
18,346.877 
2.431,976 
2.434,343 
5.806.213 
4,595,473 
1.264,974 
5.990.488 
2.643,457 
4,908,680 

113,354 
5,331.871 

24.356^683 
7.673.860 

93.490.409 

7.162,862 
588.086 

1.886.917 
23.689,436 

756^632 
8,331,641 
8,228,853 

348,360 
4,247,324 

20.202,240 
1.405^1 
3.062,117 
1,278.663 
1.050J44 

84.459.118 

Q o s r a r l 
January-

March 
2012 

S 4.106^903 

3 

4106.908 

43,866 

. 

. 
18,170 

106,439 
505,372 

61,823 
46,759 

104,441 
132.837 
36wl92 
93.769 
48,885 

. 
3.143 

704.467 
220.539 

2.126.701 

480;827 

. 

. 

. 
-

759,401 
86,175 

. 
2.274,118 

. 

. 

. 
3,60(^21 

Quaitei 2 
April-
June 
2012 

S 4,488.174 
3 

4.488.177 

9 

. 

. 
4 

22 
12) 
13 
10 
22 
28 

8 
20 

3 

. 
1 

. 
140 
46 

447 

71,360 

1 ^ 
231 

3.641 

77.160 

Quarters 
July-

2012 

$ 4,433.306 
3 

4.453.509 

9.028 

-
. 

3.747 
21JM7 

119,117 
12,771 

9.612 
21,313 
27.362 

7.306 
19,336 
3.417 

648 

. 
137.010 
43.475 , 

438,490 

435,339 

• 
. 
-
• 

722,087 
86^657 

. 
-

1,333.904 

. 
-
. 
. 

2.380.008 

Quarter4 
October-
December 

2012 

$ 4,376,033 
3 

102 

-
-

42 
248 

1,346 
144 
109 
243 
309 

85 
219 

39 

-
7 

-
1,549 

314 

4 ,937, 

1,091,805 

-
-
-
-

8.263 
993 

• 
-

13,100 

• 
-
-

1.116,161 

Quarters 1-4 

January-
December 

2012 

$ 17.624.618 
11 

17.624.629 

33.006 

-
-

21,962 
128,637 
623,956 

74.752 
56.489 

126.219 
160.536 
43,791 

113.343 
52.344 

-
3.799 

-
843,166 
266.574 

2J70.594 

2.079.352 

1.491,679 
174.056 

3,628.763 

7,373.850 

Fiujfiiiii] Tutal 
December3), 

2012 

I 281.847.382 
14,297,420 

296.144.802 

1.586.333 
656,947 
896.580 
672,399 

3.963,326 
18.972,833 
2,506,728 
2,490,832 
5,932.432 
4,756,009 
1,308,763 
6.103.831 
2.695,801 
4,908.680 

117,353 
5,351.871 

25,199,849 
7,940,434 

W£6L22L 

9,242,214 
588,086 

1,886,917 
23,689,436 

756.632 
10,043,320 
8.402,909 

348.560 
4.247,324 

23.831.003 
1,405.541 
5,062,117 
1,278.665 
1.0SOJ44 

91.832.968 

(Continued) 



LOUIS A R M S T R O N G N E W O R L E A N S I N T E R N A T I O N A L A I R P O R T 
Schedule of Revennes and EiqKDditures of Passenger Facility Qiarges 

For die year ended December 31.2012 

Application 04-07 
Project 07-001 - Airport Master Plan 
Project 07-003 - Airport Interior Signage 
Project 07-004 - Concourse C Checkpoint Expansion 
Prpject 07-005 - Constriict Conneotor Taxiwcy - Taxiway Uniform 
Project 07-006 - Construct Holding Bay - Runwqy End 19 
Project 07-007 • Exterior Terminal Renovations - Lower Roadway 
Project 07-008 - FIS Facility 
Project 07-009 - Gate Utilization Study 
Project 07-011 - Part 1542 Security Syttem 
Project 07-013 - Residential Sound Insulation Program /Land Aequtsttion 
Project 07-014 - TSA • Related Terminal Modification and Airiine Relocations 
Project 07-016 - Terminal HVAC Rdmbilitation - Phase II 
Project 07-017 -Terminal HVAC Rclnbilitatton - Phase 111 
Project 07-018 - Terminal Interior and Ebcterior Improvcmenta 
Project 07-OI9 - Terminal Pedestrian Access Enhancements 

Total AppIicatJon - 04-07 

Application 06-08 
Project 08-004 - Acquire 3.000 Gallon ARFF Vcinclo 

Total Application - 06-08 

Application 09-09 
Project 09-001 - Hazardous Wildlife Study 
Project OSMKH - Taxiway C Extension - East 

Total Application - 09-09 

Application 09-10 
Project 10-001 - Terminal Apron Rehabilitation 
Project 10-002-Northwest Service (Perimeter) Road 
Project 1(H>05 • Baggage Handling System 
Project 10-007 • Airfield Ljf^ittng Vault 
Project 10-008 • R u n w ^ 06/24 Downgrade 

Total Application - 09-10 

Total Expenditures 

PFC Revenues In Excess Of (Under) Expenditures 

Program Total 
January I 

2012 

1,133,967 
1,298,209 
1,230,667 
4,651,018 
1.067,802 
4.995,000 
8.083^12 

455.662 
10.384,180 
3,307,734 
5,918,809 
2,101.018 
1.449.000 

13,028,388 
1.381.703 

62,486,671 

742.165 

742,165 

23,076 
229.207 

252.283 

6,626,782 
887^00 
669.220 
975.915 
150.719 

9J10.136 

250.740.782 

Quarter! 
Jnmary-

Maicb 
2012 

101.650 

1,897,813 

. 
1,999,464, 

• 

5.576 
5.094 

i a 6 7 0 

304,607 
23,805 

287,202 
301,965 

-
9 I 7 J 7 9 

8.634.933 

J (4.548.027) 

Quarter2 
April-
June 
2012 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
• 

. 
-
• 

3.505,506 

3,505,506 

139,083 

139.083 

127.797 
3,832 
1,756 

65,121 
17.140 

215.666 

3JI37.862 

S 330.315 

Quarters 
July-

September 
2012 

68.213 

-
-
. 
-
. 
• 
. 

804.585 

-
• 
-
-

647.130 
• 

1.519.947 

. 

45.746 

45.746 

165.052 
41.451 

288.809 
26,421 
(2J09) 

519.424 

5.103.615 

f (630,106). 

Qua r t a4 
October-
December 

2012 

178.118 

(3.179) 

-
174,938 

. 

-

-
3,307 

130.578 

133.885 

1.429,941 

i ll̂ S£2L 

Quarters 1-4 
January-
December 

2012 

Program Total 
December31, 

2012 

169.862 1.303,829 

982.703 

1.298.209 
1,230,667 
4.651,018 
1,067,802 
4,995,000 
8,083,512 

455,662 
11,366.883 
3.307,734 
5.918,809 
2,101.018 
1,449.000 

6,047,290 21,073,678 

7,199,83. 

5,57( 
189.923 

195.49S 

597,45< 
69,101 

581.073 
524,08J 

14.83: 

1.786.554 

19,126,353 

» ^V"'.-^ 

U81,705 

69,686.526 

742.16S 

742,165 

28,632 
419.130 

447.782 

7,224,238 
956.608 

1,250,293 
1,500.000 

165.550 

11.096.690 

269.867.135 

] S 26.277.667 

See accompanying notes to schedule of revenues and expenditures of passenger &cility charges. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Note to Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

Year ended December 31,2012 

(1) Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

The accompanying Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Passenger Facility 
Charges (PFC) presents the revenues received from the PFC and expenditures incurred on 
approved projects. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting under 
which revenues are recognized when received and expenditures are recognized when 
paid. 

PFC revenue collections represent cash collected through the end of the month 
subsequent to the quarter-end as reported to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
in accordance with 14 CFR Part 158. The interest recognized represents the actual 
interest collected on the unexpended PFC cash collected during the periods reported. 

The approved collection rate for the 10 projects denoted by (1) was increased by the FAA 
from $3.00 per enplaned passenger to $4.50 per enplaned passenger, effective April 1, 
2002 upon the AJrport's submission of Application 02-05 in order to amend the 
collection level for projects within the PFC program. The collection level for the 
remaining projects within Application 02-05 remained at $3.00 per enplaned passenger. 

The approved collection level for the 9 projects denoted by (2) was increased by the FAA 
frY)m $3.00 per enplaned passenger to $4.50 enplaned passenger, effective April 1,2002, 
upon the Airport's submission of Application 02-06. The collection level for the 
remaining projects was approved by the FAA at $3.00 per enplaned passenger, efTective 
April 1,2002. 
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LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2012 

None. 



LOUIS ARMSTRONG NEW ORLEANS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Finding 2011 ~ I: Contract Documentation 

Criteria 

Condition 

Effect 

Recommendation 

Ctarent Status 

The Airport does not have signed, formalized documentation for 
contracts and/or amendments with seven contracting parties on capital 
projects related to passenger facility charge (PFC) funding sources. 

In prior periods, the Airport began capital projects without signed 
documentation for contracts and/or amendments. 

Violation of Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and other agency 
compliance requirements. 

These contracts and/or amendments should be formalized and signed by 
all parties involved in the capital project. 

Resolved, 


